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NYS Office of General Services
RFI # 22944 Serials






Serials 
(Domestic & Foreign Periodicals, 
Magazines, and Others) 
Request for Information (RFI)





This RFI is posted on the Procurement Services website: 
https://nyspro.ogs.ny.gov/content/finding-bid-opportunities
Issued: March 18, 2016
Response Submission Deadline: April 1, 2016
All inquiries shall be made by email to the following address: 
shrilata.nath@ogs.ny.gov 
Please include “RFI Response - Serials” in the Subject line of your e-mail
This is NOT a bid.  Please DO NOT request bid documents.
THIS IS A REQUEST FOR INFORMATION.
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[bookmark: _Toc445715259]1.0 	INTRODUCTION	
The New York State Office of General Services (OGS) requests information from publishers, agents, and dealers regarding products sought under Subscription Based Serials (Domestic & Foreign Periodicals, Magazines, and Others). Serials are defined as “a publication in any medium under the same title in a succession of discrete parts, usually numbered (or dated) and appearing at regular or irregular intervals with no predetermined conclusion” (as defined in ODLIS- Online Dictionary for Library and Information Services). Serials can include a variety of media, and range from print periodicals and newspapers, online magazines and journals, annuals (reports, yearbooks, etc.), continuing directories, proceedings and transactions, numbered monographic series cataloged separately, audio collections, streaming video collections, and more. Electronic databases as defined under the new OGS Solicitation 79100 - 22894 are not currently under consideration.

We request that the RFI be completed and submitted electronically.

A response does not bind or obligate the responder or the New York State Office of General Services to any agreement of provision or procurement of products/services referenced. No contract can or will be awarded based on submissions.
[bookmark: _Toc416081407][bookmark: _Toc445715260]1.1 	PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
The purpose of this Request for Information (RFI) is to acquire information on products and pricing structures offered under Subscription Based Serials.  New York State will use the information received from this RFI to review the available options and solutions in making a determination regarding future contracting strategies. Vendors interested in participating in any possible future opportunities are encouraged to respond to this RFI, register for a free account with The New York State Contract Reporter (https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/) and sign up for Email notifications.   
[bookmark: _Toc445715261]1.2 	PERTINENT DATES
	Milestone
	Date and Time

	RFI Release Date
	March 18, 2016

	RFI Response Due Date
	April 1, 2016, 2016



[bookmark: _Toc445715262]1.3	OBJECTIVES OF THIS REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
It is the objective of this RFI to:
· Develop an understanding of products and pricing structures offered within the purpose of this procurement;
· Obtain vendor perspective on future trends in the industry;
· Develop an understanding of vendor demographics in the industry.

[bookmark: _Toc445715263]2.0 	FORMAT AND SUBMISSION OF RESPONSES
1. Please provide all information using the section 3.0 	RFI RESPONSE FORM included within this document. 
2. In the Company Demographics section, please enter responses within the yellow cells found next to or below each question. 
3. Please enter responses using a computer if possible.
4. For Section 3.2 Category Specific Questions, please type in your answers below each question. You may add as many pages as necessary.
5. Please do not leave blanks. Respondents should attempt to answer all questions. If a question cannot be answered, please provide a brief explanation as to why the question cannot be answered (e.g., N/A, outside the scope of available business offering).
6. Respondents may submit additional material or material prepared specifically in response to the RFI which they believe may be of interest or use to the State. NYS requests that vendors avoid providing sales literature where possible.
7. Please rename this document with the following naming convention: SERIALS RFI - VENDOR NAME.docx (.doc format is also acceptable).   Please submit response as a Word file.
8. If any of the information in the vendor response is considered confidential, proprietary or a trade secret, it must be clearly indicated on the appropriate page of the vendor response. Release of such materials is governed by the NYS Freedom of Information Law, which in pertinent part requires the requester to provide specific justification as to why disclosure of particular information in the response would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the vendor.  
9. Please submit your response via email no later than April 1, 2016, 5:00PM to NYS OGS Procurement Services: shrilata.nath@ogs.ny.gov.   No phone calls will be accepted.  
10. OGS reserves the right to have follow-up communications with individuals and vendors who responded to the RFI.
[bookmark: _Toc445715264]2.1	GENERAL TERMS
1. The State will not be liable for any costs of work performed in the preparation and production of any RFI response.  By submitting a response to the RFI, vendor agrees not to make any claims for, or have any right to damages because of any misunderstanding or misrepresentation of the information, or because of any misinformation or lack of information in the RFI.  All responses to the RFI shall become the property of the State of New York.
2. Vendors are requested to respond to all questions.  This RFI is issued as a means for collecting market research; solely for information and planning purposes.  A response does not bind or obligate the responder or the New York State Office of General Services to any agreement of provision or procurement of services referenced. No contract can or will be awarded based on RFI submissions. 
3. Since this RFI is designed as a tool to collect information and will not result in a procurement contract, it does not fall under the requirements of State Finance Law §§139-j and 139-k (the Procurement Lobbying Law) and there is no restricted period. 
4. Freedom of Information Law and Responses
a. The purpose of New York State's Freedom of Information Law (FOIL), which is contained in Public Officers Law §§ 84-90, is to promote the public's right to know the process of governmental decision making and to grant maximum public access to governmental records. 
b. Thus, a member of the public may submit a FOIL request for disclosure of the contents of the responses submitted to the State in response to this RFI.  The responses of respondents are subject to disclosure under FOIL.  However, pursuant to Section 87(2) (d) of FOIL, a State agency may deny access to those portions of responses which "are trade secrets or submitted to an agency by a commercial enterprise or derived from information obtained from a commercial enterprise and which if disclosed would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the subject enterprise." Please note that information which you may claim as proprietary, copyrighted or rights reserved is not necessarily protected from disclosure under FOIL. 
c. If there is information in your response which you claim meets the definition set forth in Section 87(2) (d), you must so inform us in a letter accompanying your response. 
5. 	The State reserves the right to:
a. Postpone or cancel this RFI without further notification to RFI respondents.
b. Amend the specifications after the RFI release with appropriate notice to all RFI respondents.
c. Request RFI respondents to present supplemental information clarifying their responses, either in writing or in formal presentation;
d. Use any information gathered from the RFI to develop future solicitations at its discretion.  
[bookmark: _Toc416081413][bookmark: _Ref416083682][bookmark: _Toc445715265]
3.0 	RFI RESPONSE FORM

[bookmark: _Toc416081414][bookmark: _Toc445715266]3.1 	COMPANY DEMOGRAPHICS
	
	Question
	Company Response

	1
	Company Name
	

	1a
	Address
	

	1b
	City, State, Zip Code
	

	1c
	Number of Employees
	

	1d
	Years in Business 
	

	2
	Contact Name
	

	2a
	Title
	

	2b
	Email Address
	

	2c
	Phone Number
	

	3
	What is your annual revenue?
	

	4
	Are you a Small business enterprise? 
A “New York State Small Business” is defined as a company that is a resident to New York State, independently owned and operated, with 100 or fewer employees, and not dominant in its field.
	(Please respond Yes or No)

	5
	Are you a New York State Certified minority-owned business enterprise?
	(Please respond Yes or No)

	6
	Are you a New York State Certified woman-owned business enterprise?
	(Please respond Yes or No)

	7
	Are you certified with Empire State Development Corporation (ESDC) as a minority and/or woman owned business (M/WBE)?
	(Please respond Yes or No)

	8
	Are you a certified Service Disabled Veteran Owned Business (SDVOB)?
	(Please respond Yes or No)

	9
	Do you currently provide services to New York State Agencies or public sector entities in NYS
	Yes/No
	

	
	
	List Agencies
	

	
	
	List Products/Services Provided
	

	
	Please use space below if you need additional room.
	
	

	
	
	
	



[bookmark: _Toc416081415]
[bookmark: _Toc445715267]3.2 	CATEGORY SPECIFIC QUESTIONS 
(Please add additional pages as necessary.)
Definitions:
1. How do you define the term “Serial or Serials”?  How does your definition differ from the one provided in Section 1.0 Introduction? 




2. How do you define “Database or Databases”?   Please provide product examples that meet your definition.  How do databases relate to Serials, if at all? 




Products/Services:
3. What products do you offer that fit under Subscription Based Serials as described in Section 1.0 Introduction?  Please describe the product and indicate whether the product is for a particular title or whether it includes a collection of items. 




4. Please describe the format(s) of your Subscription Based product offerings including print only, print and online, online only, or via other media (please specify).




5. If the product is online and includes a collection of items, how does it differ from a database product?




6. Regarding products offered online:
a. Are there any restrictions to access such as the number of users who can access the product simultaneously? Is there an embargo period for any content? Is there a moving wall (e.g., time period between last issue of an academic journal in a given online database and the most recently published print issue of a journal)? 




b. How is access to product affected if there is a lapse in subscription? Is perpetual access provided to content?




c. Is perpetual access provided to content after subscription has ended and/or license agreement has expired?




d. Where is the online content stored? Does the user have a choice of where the content is stored? Please give examples of the different options.




e. If online content is stored on servers other than that of the user, is there an access or hosting fee? How does this fee tie into the product pricing?




f. [bookmark: _GoBack]What are the access options if online content is to be accessed from a non-user server? Is access available via IP range (no user name or login required)? 




g. If content is to be accessed from a non-user server, what are examples of user information needed to access the content (example: username, IP address)? What are the privacy and security concerns to the user?




h. What are security measures you have in place to prevent data breaches, ensure the integrity of online content, and protect user information?




i. What are the options for archival access? Please include information on pricing.




j. 	For publishers, do you participate in any e-journal preservation service, such as Portico or LOCKSS?




7. What are the services/tools that you offer to help your customer manage user Subscriptions, print and online, such as software, o electronic management platform? Is there a charge for the services/tools?




8. Do you offer Subscription Based eBooks? How is the product offering structured, and priced? eBooks are offered on OGS’ Books, Non-Print Library Materials, Related Ancillary Services, Group 20020-Award 22868. In this question, we are interested in Subscription Based eBooks.




9. What products do you offer that do not fit within, but are close to, the description of Subscription Based Serials in the Introduction to this RFI? Please take into account the OGS Books, Non-Print Library Materials, Related Ancillary Services, Group 20020-Award 22868 and the new OGS Electronic Databases Solicitation 79100 - 22894 as you answer this question.




10. If you have a contract with the New York State Office of General Services on the current Serials award (Group 20020-Award 21681), do you require an additional user agreement/contract? If yes, please provide us a sample of the agreement.



Pricing Models:
11. What kind of pricing models do you use with your products, print only, print and online, and online only? Please include information such as the content available at different levels of pricing, any average yearly increase in cost, and cancellation policy. Please indicate if online content is offered as a subscription based rental, or for ownership.




Industry Trends:
12. What are the trends you see in the Subscription Based Serials Industry with the increasing emphasis on digital content? 




13. How are you preparing to address these trends?




14. As the industry experiences a greater demand in online content, do you see a change in the demographics of Subscription Agents? Will there be fewer/more agents and what will differentiate them?



Other:
15. Is there anything else you can tell OGS regarding Serials that hasn’t already been asked?
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